ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
SENATE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON THE ARCTI C
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON ECONOM C DEVELCPNMENT, TOURI SM &
ARCTI C PCLI CY
Cct ober 2, 2015
1:05 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT
SENATE SPECI AL COMWM TTEE ON THE ARCTI C

Senator Cathy G essel, Co-Chair
Senator Lesil MQuire, Co-Chair
Senat or John Coghil |

HOUSE SPECIAL COW TTEE ON ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, TOURI SM &
ARCTI C POLI CY

Representati ve Bob Herron, Chair

Representative Craig Johnson

Representative Charisse MIllett, via tel econference
Representative Cathy Tilton

Representative Dan Otiz

MEMBERS ABSENT
SENATE SPECI AL COMWM TTEE ON THE ARCTI C
Senat or Lynman Hof f man
Senator Gary Stevens
Senat or Donal d d son
Senator Cick Bishop
Senat or Berta Gardner

HOUSE SPECIAL COW TTEE ON ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, TOURI SM &
ARCTI C PQLI CY

Representati ve Loui se Stutes
Represent ati ve Adam Wol

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Bryce Edgnon - via tel econference

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES -1- Cct ober 2, 2015



PRESENTATI ON: ALASKA ARCTI C PCLI CY COMM SSI ON ( AAPC)
| MPLEMENTATI ON PLAN

DEPARTMENT OF ENVI RONMENTAL CONSERVATI ON RECOMVENDATI ON 3A

DEPARTMENT OF COWVMERCE, COVMUN TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT
RECOMVENDATI ONS 3B, 3C, AND 3D

ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF FI SH AND GAME RECOMVENDATI ONS 3E AND 3F

DEPARTMENT OF LAW RECOVMENDATI ON 3G

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT RECOMVENDATI ON 3H
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REGQ STER

BILL GRIFFITH, Facility Progranms Manager

Departnment of Environnental Conservation (DEC)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information related to DEC s role
in Arctic communities.

CHRI S HLADI CK, Comm ssi oner

Depart ment of Commrerce, Conmunity and Econom c Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned DCCED Recommendations 3B, 3C, and
3D.

JOEL NI EMEYER, Federal Co-Chair

Denal i Conmi ssi on

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TION  STATEMENT: Report ed on t he i npl enent ati on of
Reconmendat i on 3D,

GLENN HAI GHT, Executive Director

Al aska Board of Fisheries

Boards Support Section

Al aska Departnment of Fish and Gane

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Present ed Recommendati ons 3E and 3F.

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES - 2- Cct ober 2, 2015



BRUCE DALE, Director

Division of WIldlife Conservation

Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane ( ADF&G

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to food security
of the Arctic people.

BRAD MEYEN, Seni or Assistant Attorney General

Nat ural Resources Section

Department of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TION  STATEMENT: Expl ai ned | egal posi tions regar di ng
Endangered Species Act (ESA) listings.

M KE ANDREWS, Director

Di vi sion of Enploynent and Training Services

Depart ment of Labor and Workf orce Devel opnent ( DOLWVD)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed Al aska Arctic Policy Conm ssion
Recommendat i on 3H.

MARK BRZEZI NSKI, Executive Director

Arctic Executive Steering Conmittee

Washi ngton, D.C.

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about the federal governnent's
perspective of the future of the Arctic.

BETH KERTTULA, Director

Nat i onal Ocean Counci |

Washi ngton, D.C.

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the presentation of the
Al aska Arctic Policy Comm ssion's |nplenentation Plan.

VI VI AN KORTHUI S, Vice President of Conmmunity Services

Associ ation of Village Council Presidents (AVCP)

Bet hel , Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on ways to help support healthy
communi ties.

KATE BLAIR, Commttee and Projects Coordi nator
Al aska O | and Gas Associ ati on (AOC&)

Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Shared AOGA's role in Arctic policy.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES - 3- Cct ober 2, 2015



1:05:37 PM

CHAIR HERRON called the joint neeting of the Senate Speci al
Commttee on the Arctic and the House Special Conmittee on
Econom c Devel opnent, Tourism & Arctic Policy to order at 9:05
a.m Present at the call to order were Senators Coghill and Co-
Chair Gessel and Co-Chair MQuire, and Representatives Tilton

Otiz, Johnson and Chair Herron.

Al aska Arctic Policy Conm ssion (AAPC) | npl enentation Pl an

CO CHAIR MCQUJI RE commented that the topic of Healthy Comrunities
is one area where the people of the Arctic can be positively
i npacted. The purpose of today's hearing is to learn about the
adm nistration's perspective of this topic through state agency
i nvol venent. She stressed that this is the beginning of the
conversation

1: 09: 33 PM

CO- CHAIR G ESSEL commented that she is a nurse practitioner and
she led the team that worked on the resource devel opnent piece
of AAPC. She opined that "a good paying job is the best social
program " She read a quote about resource devel opnment and how it
relates to positive conmunity and econonic devel opnent, cultural
preservation, a nodern standard of |Iliving, and health and
safety.

CHAI R HERRON noted that Representative Edgnon was |istening via
tel econference. He also said the presentation could be found on
BASI S.

Departnent of Environnental Conservation Reconmendation 3A

1:11: 47 PM

BILL GRIFFITH, Facility Prograns Manager, Depar t ment of
Environnental Conservation (DEC), presented information related
to DECs role in Arctic comunities. He said the departnent
works with conmmunities all over the state, but today he would
focus on the plan's delivery of reliable in-hone water, sewer,
and sanitation services in rural Arctic comunities.

MR. CGRIFFITH began by relating the departnent's focus on the
process of getting rid of the honey bucket. Today, about 85
percent of rural homes have indoor pl unbing. This was
acconplished with a centralized approach of treating 100 percent
of the water to full regulatory conpliance, storing |arge
guantities of water, and distributing the treated water. The

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES -4- Cct ober 2, 2015



househol d sewage is transported to a | agoon. About 60 percent of
Arctic comunities have pipe systens, sonme have individual
wells, and a handful have truck delivery, but 31 comunities
don't have individual services. The total nunber of unserved
homes i s about 3, 500.

1: 15: 17 PM
CO- CHAI R MCQUI RE asked where the 31 communities are | ocated.

MR GRIFFITH replied that they are in the Yukon-Kuskokwi m Delta
the Interior, and in the Northwest Territory. He referred to a
map on the DEC website which depicts those communiti es.

He turned to a chart show ng water and sewer funding needs, both
for the current system and for the unserved communities. The
amount has increased from $4 nillion in 2006 to alnost $700
mllion in 2014. The funding gap continues to w den and appears
to be an untenable situation as it is currently set up.

CO CHAIR G ESSEL noticed that in 2010 funding increased and then
decreased. She asked if federal funding played a role.

MR GRIFFITH replied that the funding line represents al
sources, including state and federal funds. The increase was
caused by stinulus funds.

REPRESENTATI VE ORI TZ asked him to summarize the reason for the
rapid upward novenent related to the Red Mne in the last five
years.

MR GRIFFITH explained that it 1is related to increasing
construction costs and aging facilities. Al so, the regulatory
environment for drinking water and waste water disposal involves
new costs in order to neet conpliance standards.

CO- CHAIR MCGAUI RE requested charts of nunbers of households and
fundi ng needs, as well as delineating between new househol ds and
t hose doi ng upgrades.

MR. GRIFFI TH agreed to provide the charts to the commttee.

1:20: 38 PM

He noted that the cost of operating a water and sewer systemin
rural communities is nmuch greater than anywhere else. In the
Lower 48 and in large Alaska communities it takes 1 percent of
the average income to fund a sewer and water system but in
rural comunities it takes 5 percent.

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES - 5- Cct ober 2, 2015



He concluded that innovative approaches are needed to address
heal th probl ens associated with water and sewer defi cienci es.

MR. GRI FFI TH spoke of the Al aska Water and Sewer Challenge which
began in 2013. Sone key conponents are that it is private sector
driven and ownership of all intellectual property is retained by
project teans. Milti-disciplinary teans |ooked at the problens
of rural sewer and water wth a decentralized approach -
househol d | evel systens. Three teans are putting together pilot
systenms which will be evaluated by DEC. Focus group nenbers from
t hroughout rural Al aska are working with the teans.

1:24:10 PM
REPRESENTATI VE  JOHNSON asked if the project teans are
contractors.

MR. GRIFFITH explained that two of the three teans are private
sector driven and the third is led by University of Al aska-
Anchor age.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked why private conpanies retain
intellectual properties when the funding is comng from federa
or state sources.

MR CRIFFITH clarified that DEC felt that the teans would be
notivated to invest in the projects.

1: 25: 59 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL noted that sone teans have invested in the
projects. He asked if a conpany from Fairbanks was invol ved.

MR CRIFFITH didn't know He noted that DEC is |ooking at the
contai neri zed approach for smaller communities such as Aki ak.

SENATOR COGHI LL suggested using a consistent design and all ow ng
conpetition.

COCHAIR MCGU RE thought it could be an opportunity for
entrepreneurial efforts. She said projects are nore narketable
when the cost of energy is |owered.

1:28:14 PM
VR. GRIFFITH noted that the United States has assuned
chai rmanship of the Arctic Council. He said DEC has been worKking

with the State Departnent on a recommendation to hold an
I nternational Conference on Water and Sewer Service in Rural

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES - 6- Cct ober 2, 2015



Arctic Communities in Anchorage in the fall of 2016. However, it
has no funding at this point. The conference would bring
t oget her engineers, scientists, researchers, and policy nmakers
from all over the Artic to address sonme of the chall enges and
innovative ideas related to water and sewer service. At that
conference DEC would denonstrate the pilot systens it 1is
devel oping with the Al aska Water and Sewer Chall enge.

CHAI R HERRON asked for information about how the two comm ttees
coul d endorse the conference.

MR. GRIFFI TH agreed to provide the information.

1:30: 39 PM
CO CHAI R MCGUI RE noted that Representative MIlett was on |ine.

MR CRIFFITH shared information about a statewide study to
assess the feasibility of piped water and sewer in renaining
unserved villages and partially served vill ages.

1: 32: 00 PM
COCHAIR MCGQUI RE asked what is needed in order to have the
conf erence take place.

MR CGRIFFITH replied the State Departnent supports the idea of a
conference, but does not supply funding for the projects.
Federal agency support woul d be needed.

CO CHAIR MCGU RE asked what the conference budget would | ook
like.

MR GRIFFI TH estimated $200, 000.

He turned to the topic of the connection between increased hone
water use, water quantity and inproved health. Studies show a
direct link in decreased severe skin infections and respiratory
di seases. There is need for further studies and inproved
education and public outreach regarding better water use
practices in hones.

CO CHAIR MCGUI RE suggested setting a goal of reducing by 50
percent the nunbers of households that do not have access to
wat er and sewer. Canada set a goal of eradicating this problem
and has actually attained it.

MR CGRIFFITH nentioned the inportance of technical service
providers for water and sewer systens who provide essential

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES -7 Cct ober 2, 2015



training and services throughout the state. They are funded
primarily through federal assistance grants specific to Al aska.

1:36:57 PM

He spoke of long term initiatives for future |legislative
consi derati on. Local contributions for wat er and sewer
i nprovenents are currently prohibited by the Village Safe Water
Act  (VSWA). Mcro loan programs for snall projects in

communities mght be a solution. He reviewed the history of the
VSWA and why it did not include appropriations for water and
sewer .

REPRESENTATIVE ORI TZ asked how nrmuch funding the state
contributed this year toward water and sewer prograns.

MR. GRIFFITH answered that the state has provided the required
match in order to receive federal funding.

1: 39:57 PM
CO CHAIR MCQUI RE expressed support for the idea of conmmunity
m cro | oans.

SENATOR COGHI LL thanked M. Giffith for his work. He inquired
if there are any new i deas for replacing obsol ete systens.

MR. CGRIFFITH answered that DEC is always |ooking for innovative
ideas. Currently, there is discussion about upgrading old water
treatment plants for |less <cost. He added that they are
installing renote nonitoring features.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked if there are possibilities of financing
packages with housing entities |ike HUD

MR CRIFFITH replied there is not nuch noney available from
housi ng prograns for water and sewer inprovenents, but there is
for in-home plunbing. He noted that DEC is working closely with
the Cold Cdinate Housi ng Research Center in Fairbanks.

He pointed out a future need for subsidies for water and sewer
i mprovenents to extend the |ife of the systens and save a | ot of
nmoney in the |ong run.

Departnent of Comrerce, Community and Econom c¢ Devel opnent
Recommendati ons 3B, 3C, and 3D

1: 45: 46 PM
CO- CHAI R MCQUI RE i ntroduced Cormi ssioner H adick

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES - 8- Cct ober 2, 2015



CHRI' S HLADI CK, Conmi ssioner, Departnent of Conmerce, Comrunity
and Econom ¢ Devel opnent ( DCCED) , expl ai ned DCCED
Recommendations 3B, 3C, and 3D. He shared his experience of
l[iving in the Arctic for 25 years.

He began with Recomendation 3B, which is to reduce power and
heating costs in rural Al askan Arctic communities. He addressed
the coll aboration between the Al aska Energy Authority (AEA), the
Al aska Center for Energy Power (ACEP), and the Alaska Village
Electric Cooperative (AVEQ, which has been successfully
integrating renewables. They are responsible for researching,
devel oping, and constructing energy infrastructure. He shared
their new technol ogy goal s.

COWM SSI ONER HLADI CK di scussed Adm nistrative Oder 272, which
IS to facilitate col | aborati on and coordi nation anong
governmental and other entities involved with consuner energy.
He described the working group that was tasked with |owering the
cost of energy and increasing efficiency.

The Al aska Affordable Energy Strategy (SB 138) was set up to
provide a source of funding for those who won't have direct
access to a North Slope natural gas pipeline. The working group
is considering ways to reduce energy costs, |ong-term planning,
and i nvestnent strategies.

He said DCCED concurs that long-term strategic planning is
needed to address conplex issues of change in renpte Arctic
communities. He discussed objectives of a coordinated planning
strat egy.

1:52: 24 PM

COMM SSI ONER HLADI CK turned to current efforts of inplenentation
of Recommrendation 3C. He described the Al aska Conmunity Coasta
Protection Project blueprint for how to inplement 3C for the
communities  of Shi shmar ef Shaktoolik and Kivalina. The
objective is to increase conmunity sustainability, resilience to
the inpacts of climte change and natural hazards.

CHAI R HERRON asked himto share efforts nade in Kivalina.
COWMM SSI ONER HLADI CK said the plans necessary to receive funding
are in place and a funding source is being sought. A working
group is seeking answers if funding is not found.

1: 55: 38 PM

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES -9- Cct ober 2, 2015



He reported that currently funding and technical support for a
full-time comunity coordinator is being provided for each of
the three comunities. Also, interagency working groups have
been organized to assist wth the planning effort. The
communities and the inter-agency working group is working on a
long-term strategic managenent plan. He noted the plan is
comunity driven and t he Depart ment of Envi ronnent a
Conservation (DEC) is intimately involved with it. So far, no
additional funding has been identified. He suggested that the
| egi slature could act to fund future Departnent of Conmunity and
Regi onal Affairs (CRA) planning efforts and federal and other
fundi ng opportunities should be pursued.

1:57:32 PM

COW SSI ONER HLADI CK addressed Reconmendation 3D, which is to
anticipate, evaluate, and respond to risks from climte change
related to land erosion and deterioration of comunity
infrastructure and services, and support comunity efforts to
adapt and rel ocate when necessary. He explained the Al aska Ri sk
Mappi ng, Assessnent, and Planning (Ri sk MAP) program which is
funded by FEMA and inplenented by the Division of Community and
Regi onal Affairs. It provides comunities wth tools, resources,
and technical assistance they need to achieve greater disaster
resilience.

He di scussed the Alaska Cimate Change |npact Mtigation Program
established by the legislature to provide funding and technica
assistance for comunities with immnent risk of climate-rel ated
natural hazards. It has two funding sources, the Hazard | npact
Assessnent Grants and the Community Adaptation Planning G ants
The Denali Comm ssion has been naned as the single coordinating
agency for the program

He addressed future considerations for Recomendation 3D and
concluded that a lot of planning had gone into this effort and
continued efforts to find federal and alternative funding nust
be undert aken.

2:02:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ORI TZ request ed nor e i nformation about
controlling high energy costs. He referred specifically to two
weat heri zation progranms currently in effect and asked if they
have had any inpact in the Artic.

COWM SSI ONER HLADI CK answered yes. He listed ways that high

energy costs mght be controlled. One of the problens is that
standards are often not net when conpleting projects. Schools

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES - 10- Cct ober 2, 2015



need incentives to inprove their energy consunption. He
suggested that a new hone mght be financed based on fuel
savi ngs.

CO CHAIR MCGQUI RE noted that in 2009 the state put in $24 million
mat ched by federal governnment to AHFC for school district |oans
using the sanme concept. She asked about Comm ssioner H adick's
role on the Arctic Council.

COWMM SSI ONER HLADI CK answered that he is one of five people, and
the only Alaskan, named to a task force on Arctic Marine
Cooper ati on.

COCHAIR MCGQU RE agreed that getting Alaskans involved in
wor ki ng groups is inportant.

COWM SSI ONER HLADI CK said there is a request for an Al askan to
get involved in a Sustainable Devel oprent Wrking Goup and he
vol unteered to do so. He said he also has been naned to a Marine
Prot ection Wrking G oup.

SENATOR COGHI LL thanked him for his involvenent and agreed that
having a local voice is very inportant. He asked how | ocal
comuni ties manage federal funding.

COWM SSI ONER HLADI CK responded that the mapping establishes the
100-year flood plain and the insurance program works based on
house | ocati on.

2:12: 03 PM

CHAI R HERRON comrented that many urban dwellers benefitted from
the weat herization program He gave an exanple of the savings a
weat heri zed hone in Bethel mght receive.

He requested a report on the Denali Comm ssion.

2:13: 03 PM

JOEL NI EMEYER, Federal Co-Chair, Denali Conm ssion, reported on
the inplenmentation of Recommendation 3D. He related that the
Pr esi dent bana  appointed an Arctic Executive Steering
Commttee, which is a high-level group that can effect funding
for progranms in the Arctic. He noted the Denali Conm ssion wl
never have the funds needed for adaptation strategies of village

relocation or "protect and place" and will need to rely on
| ocal, state, and federal funding. The Denali Comm ssion has a
coordinating role that is still being worked on. It will provide

an opportunity for Al askans to "get to the policy makers."

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES -11- Cct ober 2, 2015



Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane Reconmendati ons 3E and 3F

2:15:43 PM

GLENN HAI GHT, Executive Director, Alaska Board of Fisheries,
Boards Support Section, Alaska Departnent of Fish and Gane,
presented Recommendations 3E and 3F. He related that the
departnment is inpressed with AAPC s strategies, which correlate
with sone of the departnment's prograns regardi ng education and
outreach, food security, and the endangered species |istings.

He began with a discussion of the departnent's education and
outreach program with a goal to involve conmunities in the
managenent of fish and wildlife resources. Education toward the
goal of connecting people with their natural environnment involve
hunter education, teacher resources and workshops, events and
prograns. Working with the Departnent of Education and Workforce
Devel opnent, ADF&G provides an Alaska Natural Resource &
Environnental Literacy Pl an.

He hi ghlighted exanples of ADF&G s outreach to comunities about
critical issues in the Arctic, for exanple, the Wstern Arctic
cari bou, noose in the Upper Koyukuk, Sheefish, Dolly Varden, and
mari ne manmal prograns.

He said that AAPC has enhanced the advisory conmittee system
within the Boards program to include nore outreach and
education. He explained that the Board of Ganme and Board of
Fisheries are not set up by geographic l|locations and there are
two nenbers from Arctic areas on the Board of Fisheries and one
on the Board of Gane.

2:21:14 PM

MR. HAIGHT continued to say that there are 84 different advisory
commttees and 28 are in the Arctic. They are mde up of
vol unt eers whose functions are to review and make
recommendations on reqgulatory proposals. They also serve as
| ocal forums on issues related to ADF&G They are often invol ved
i n conpl ex managenent i ssues.

SENATOR COCGHI LL advi sed nenbers to attend an advisory conmttee
nmeeting. He said they can be very intense.

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT noted that Anchorage advisory conmttees

don't feel like they are listened to very much. She asked how
much consideration the departnent gives to advisory commttee

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES -12- Cct ober 2, 2015



recommendations. She said three nenbers resigned because they
felt Iike they were being bl ocked.

MR HAIGHT replied that the departnent was aware of this
situation so he reviewed Anchorage's suggestions and it appeared
that 80 percent of them were taken into consideration. He added
t hat Fairbanks has also had a hard tine working with the boards
and he would continue to work with them This issue is on the
Board of Fisheries' agenda.

MR. HAIGHT comented that ADF&G has started two progranms: a
recognition programto highlight work the advisory conmttees do
and a training program so they can be nore effective at board
nmeet i ngs.

MR. HAIGHT turned to Recommendation 3F - to enforce neasures
that protect and help further understanding of food security of
Arctic peoples and conmunities. It enconpasses nmany topic, such
as econom c independence, energency preparedness, heal t h,
nutrition, and sustainable food production. The Comm ssion
requested that ADF&G focus on cultural dependence on a living
resource of a region (subsistence).

2:27:18 PM

He related that subsistence foods are researched and neasured
and managed for sustainability. They are the first priority in
consunptive uses. He pointed out that over 90 percent of Arctic
househol ds use fish and gane resources.

The Division of Subsistence has done extensive research. The
issue of food security has been targeted since 2004 by
communities and a level of concern is being raised. The
Department of Commerce, Conmmunity and Econom c Devel opnent
(DCCED) is also involved in subsistence research on food
contam nants. He enphasized that subsistence is a priority and
is measured and mnaged by the Divisions of Wldlife
Conservation, Sport Fish, and Comercial Fisheries.

MR, HAI GHT addressed clinmate change. He said in 2007 the state
created a subcabinet led by DEC on climte change. He continued
that ADF&G s part was to develop a climte change strategy in
order to focus on the likely effects on fish and wildlife and
their uses and to devel op adaptations and strategies to address
t hese effects.

2:33: 04 PM

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES - 13- Cct ober 2, 2015



CHAIR HERRON requested the status of that information as it
originally appeared and as it is currently.

BRUCE DALE, Director, Division of WIldlife Conservation, Al aska
Department of Fish and Gane (ADF&G, answered questions rel ated
to food security of the Arctic people. He said he didn't have
that information and offered to provide it |ater.

MR. HAI GHT addressed Recommendation 3G to identify and pronote
i ndustry, comunity and state practices t hat pr onot e
sustainability of subsistence resources while protecting against
undue Endangered Species Act (ESA) Ilistings and broad-brush
critical habitat designations. He stated there has been close
col | aboration between ADF&G and the Departnent of Law on the
science and the law related to this issue.

2:34:13 PM
COCHAIR G ESSEL asked if ADF&G is collecting data on the
Al exander Archi pel ago wol f.

MR. HAIGHT replied they have been conducting research on the
Prince of Wales wolf since the late 80s and have substanti al
data from a variety of nethods. He estinmated that the figure of
24 wol ves per thousand square kiloneters has dropped to 12. It
is still the highest wolf density in Al aska. Prince of Wiles
deer do not need to be Ilisted and can support the wolf
popul ati on.

CO-CHAIR G ESSEL wunderstood that those wlves need to be
identified as a uni que subspeci es.

MR. HAIGHT answered that the US. Fish and WIdlife Service
(FW8) concluded they could be listed as a distinct population
segnent and |listed them as such. The state considers them just
anot her Sout heast wol f.

REPRESENTATIVE ORITZ said he is from Ketchikan and asked if
ADF&G is not going to reconmmend listing them as an endangered
species, but FW5 is.

MR HAIGHT clarified the petition to |list them as endangered
canme from non-governnental organi zations (NGOs).

REPRESENTATI VE ORI TZ asked if there is cooperation between FW5
and ADF&G

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES -14- Cct ober 2, 2015



MR. HAIGHT answered at tines. He stressed that it is a very
hotly contested issue. There is a lot of uncertainty and
controversy.

Departnent of Law Recomendati on 3G

2:43: 36 PM

BRAD MEYEN, Senior Assistant Attorney General, Natural Resources
Section, Departnment of Law (DOL), explained |egal positions
regar di ng Endangered Species Act (ESA) listings. He related that
DOL works closely with ADF& to protect food security and
subsi stence resources as they relate to ESA rulings. He gave
several exanples of restrictions and exceptions of ESA rulings.

He shared the process of ESA reviews and described how petitions
go through to a final decision and critical habitat designation.
He stressed that it is a process consisting of many stages.

CO CHAIR G ESSEL asked how long he has been working on ESA
listings.

MR MEYEN said since Decenber of 2007

CHAIR HERRON asked if he is the only one who works on ESA
I Ssues.

MR. MEYEN replied that he is the only designated attorney in DOL
who works on ESA issues, but outside counsel also assists in
litigation, as do other assistant attorney generals, as needed.

CHAIR HERRON said it |ooks |like Al aska has been successful nost
of the tinme. He asked if there is a pending "hot [list" of
federal |istings.

2:47:58 PM
MR. HAIGHT reported that the Northern Bog Lenm ng and Phal aropes
(Wadepi pers) in the North Sl ope are on the radar.

SENATOR COGHILL asked how other Arctic countries deal wth
endangered species protection and whether ESA is unique to the
United States.

VR. MEYEN replied that endangered species listings are
wor |l dwi de, but Alaska is the only state where certain species
exist and is the only area where critical habitat can be
designated for those species under ESA. He used the polar bear
as an exanpl e.

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES - 15- Cct ober 2, 2015



SENATOR COGHI LL asked for a conparison of America to other
Arctic nation's regul ati ons.

MR. MEYEN didn't know how other countries deal wth their
endangered species. He opined that the US. Fish and Wldlife
Service and the National Marine Fisheries Service conputer
nodel s contain pretty extrene projections out one hundred years.

SENATOR COGHI LL suggested that Al aska think internationally, as
wel |, when discussing endangered species issues wth other
Arctic nations.

MR. HAIGHT said that Canada appears to have a programsimlar to
the United State program He noted that marine mammals are al so
managed under a global treaty called the Marine Mamal
Protection Act. The managenent of the Chukchi Sea polar bear
guota is an exanpl e.

2:54: 35 PM
MR. MEYEN added an exanpl e regarding the ringed seals.

He explained the role between the state and federal agencies in
terms of ESA managenent. He focused on Section 4(i), a provision
that states that the Secretary nust submt to the state a
witten justification for the failure to adopt state
regul ati ons. He gave several exanples where the state prevail ed.

2:57:26 PM

MR. MEYEN reported on three state-challenged critical habitat
case appeals. He predicted that by the end of 2015 all of these
cases woul d be resol ved.

SENATOR COGHILL asked if the 9th Crcuit Court is wunder a
timeline.

MR. MEYEN answer ed no.

CO CHAIR MCGQUI RE asked if the state would appeal the 9th Grcuit
Court deci sions.

MR. MEYEN answered that it would depend on the reason for
deni al .

3:00: 44 PM

MR. MEYEN addressed the collaboration on endangered species
l[itigation between the Association of Fish and Wldlife

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES - 16- Cct ober 2, 2015



Agencies, a coalition of the 50 state agencies, the Wstern
Association, which includes 22 western agencies and several
Canadi an provi nces, as well as the \Western Gover nors
Associ ati on, Native organizations, and | ocal gover nment s,
especially the North Slope Borough. There also has been
cooperation with the ESA Federal Task Force. He added that the
current chair of the Wstern Governors Association is Womng' s
Governor Lee who is focusing on ESA reforns.

3:02: 18 PM
MR. HAIGHT added that Alaska is participating in the Wstern
Governors Associ ati on Task Force in Novenber of 2015.

SENATOR COGHI LL requested notices of such neetings.

COCHAIR MCGQUIRE agreed. She said three commttees, Arctic
Policy, Judiciary, and Resources woul d be inpacted.

Depart nent of Labor and Wor kf orce Devel opnent Reconmendati on 3H

3:03: 59 PM

M KE ANDREWS, Director, Division of Enploynent and Training
Servi ces, Departnent of Labor and Wrkforce Devel opnent (DOLVD),
addressed Al aska Arctic Policy Comm ssion Recormendati on 3H. The
purpose of 3His to create workforce devel opnment prograns to
prepare Arctic residents to participate in all aspects and
phases of Arctic devel opment. He shared the policies related to
t he recommendati on: pronote econom ¢ and resource devel opnent,
address the response capacity gap, support healthy comunities,
and strengthen state-based science and research agenda.

He |isted areas identified by the Arctic Council: energency and
environmental response, search and rescue, telecomunications,
maritime, ports, road and civil construction, oil and gas

devel opnent, and facility operations. He named the workforce
plans that the state already has in place, all of which are
aligned with Al aska's Career and Techni cal Education Pl an

3:07:41 PM

MR. ANDREWS di scussed the current Arctic |abor market, including
unenpl oynent and workforce statistics. He provided data about
j obs provided by the oil and gas industry, |ocal governnent, and
m ning. He spoke of workforce challenges, such as attracting and
trai ning young people to the Arctic workforce.

He enphasi zed Governor Walker's priority of a renewed focus on
Al aska hire and that the departnent wll expand training and

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES -17- Cct ober 2, 2015



apprenticeships in the areas of mning, maritime, oil and gas
and health care. The departnent was awarded a grant of $3
mllion from the US Depar t ment of Labor to expand
apprenticeships in health care occupati ons.

CHAIR HERRON asked M. Andrews to explain enforcenent against
wor ker m sclassification and |abor trafficking, as shown in the
slide presentation.

MR. ANDREWS explained that it seeks to prevent inporting
enpl oyers and workers that are not up to state standards.

3:12:11 PM
He highlighted the University of Alaska's role in Arctic
wor kf orce devel opnent with quality prograns and training.

CO CHAIR G ESSEL said she has heard that 90 percent of Al aska
Marine Hi ghway's Masters and Mates are not Al aska residents. She
asked if M. Andrews was aware of that.

MR. ANDREWS replied that he didn't know the answer to that, but
he offered to find out. He said that the maritine industry has
the | argest nunber of jobs in the state at about 70, 000.

SENATOR COGHI LL pointed out that G eenland, Finland, and Sweden
are probably trying to do the sane type of training for
occupations in the Artic and wondered if Alaska could
col l aborate wth them

MR. ANDREWS answered that he has not |ooked into that, but was
aware that it was also taking place in other countries.

3:17:19 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL suggested that Al aska m ght benefi t by
participating in regional and international training centers.

MR. ANDREWS agreed. He thought it would be very beneficial in
the area of maritimnme jobs.

He shared information on regional training centers, such as in
Kot zebue, None, Barrow, King Sal non, and Bet hel

REPRESENTATI VE ORTI Z asked if Alaska is losing oil industry jobs

due to lack of training and if there were any training centers
specific to that industry.

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES - 18- Cct ober 2, 2015



MR. ANDREWS answered that he has seen nore new hires of workers
who don't live in Alaska, especially in Prudhoe Bay. He stated
that nore has to be done to create direct access for Al askans in
all industries.

REPRESENTATI VE ORTI Z asked if the trend is to hire nore |oca
residents and the situation is inproving.

MR. ANDREWS noted the fact that only 2 percent are local hires
is problematic. He stressed that direct access to the jobs nust
be i nproved.

CO-CHAIR G ESSEL asked himto define "local resident."”

MR. ANDREWS thought it nmeant "folks from the North Slope
Bor ough. "

CO-CHAIR G ESSEL asked if he was sure.
MR ANDREWS answered he would confirmthat.
CO-CHAI R G ESSEL asked how t he data was col | ect ed.

MR. ANDREWS answered that the state collected it from PFD
applications and enpl oynent statistics.

COCHAIR G ESSEL recalled a private organization that did a
study and cane up with a different nunmber for jobs held by non-
Al askans. She requested nore dat a.

MR. ANDREWS highlighted the Fairbanks Pipeline Training Center
and Seward's Alaska Vocational Technical Education Center
(AVTEC) which has training progranms for maritine workers.

He addressed key Arctic workforce planning principles: career &
techni cal education planning for Arctic econom c and workforce
devel opnent, directly involve industry, regional enployers,
educators, and conmunity representatives, and training prograns
focused and designed for sustainability. He shared a plan to
perform an Arctic region economc and workforce analysis that
will be sent to the Arctic Policy Council in the spring of 2016.

3:28:23 PM

CHAIR HERRON reconmmended providing an update to Senator
G essel's questions on enploynment data with the report to the
Arctic Policy Council.

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES -19- Cct ober 2, 2015



3:28: 57 PM
CHAI R HERRON opened public testinony.

MARK BRZEZI NSKI, Executive Director, Arctic Executive Steering
Conmttee, testified about the federal governnent's perspective
of the future of the Arctic. He said he had been working wth
Beth Kerttula to spearhead a unity of purpose on the part of the
federal government regarding the future of the Arctic, a core
m ssion of the newly fornmed Arctic Executive Steering Commttee.
He shared the genesis, goals, and priorities of the conmttee,
which was created by President Obama by executive order in
January 2015. Its mission covers donestic and international
issues and its core goals are to set and evaluate priorities,
especially those the President nmade after visiting Alaska, to

accelerate and integrate a full coordinating effort with the
state, local, and tribal entities, and to proactively support
the U S. chairing the Arctic Council. He stressed the inportance

of the President's visit and the need to work globally on the
challenges of the Arctic. He noted that three inportant
commtnents were made following the President's visit.

3:38:14 PM

BETH KERTTULA, Director, National Ocean Council, testified
during the presentation of the Al aska Arctic Policy Conmm ssion's
| rpl enentation Plan. She said she could see Mark Brzezinski's
deep conmmitnent to Alaska and the Arctic. She listed several
projects the federal government is involved with in the Arctic,
such as the mapping project.

CHAIR HERRON stated he was glad to see the federal governnent
recogni zing the inportance of Arctic policy and wanting to have
an earnest conversation about the Arctic. He stressed the
i nportance of the legislature's role in the conversation.

SENATOR COGHI LL said he was |ooking forward to international
cooperation. He opined that U S. federal regulations appear to
be nore burdensone than in other Arctic nations and he w shed to
see them al i gned.

CHAI R HERRON agreed. He stated that the federal government seens
to hold Alaska to a different standard than the other 49 states.

MR. BRZEZINSKI said he welconed |earning about inportant,
specific Al askan concerns. He pointed out that regarding
i nternational cooperation, the United States is "in the catbird
seat" as the leader of the Arctic Council and could advance
priorities.

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES - 20- Cct ober 2, 2015



M5. KERTTULA noted the inportance of agency coordination on
Arctic positions and policies.

MR. BRZEZINSKI related how he followed up on Senator MQiire's
concern about conmunication with the Departnent of Energy.

CO-CHAIR MCAQUI RE said she is relieved and thanked him

3:49:52 PM

VIVI AN  KORTHU S, Vice President of Community  Services,
Association of Village Council Presidents (AVCP), testified on
ways to help support healthy conmunities. She said everything
the tribe does in their region "is Arctic" because the Arctic is
their home. She spoke of their goal for healthy communities and
shared AVCP' s recommendati ons.

CHAIR HERRON noted +the comittee had a copy of t he
recomendati ons. He asked her about the top two.

M5. KORTHUIS said these are not the only things that can be
inmpl emented in the region. She highlighted the recommendations
of the holistic approach and the partnership with the Cold
Climate Research Center, and the Emergency Response Center
Project, and others.

CHAI R HERRON t hanked her for her patience in waiting to testify.

3:59:22 PM

KATE BLAIR, Committee and Projects Coordinator, Alaska Gl and
Gas Association (AO®), shared ACGA's role in Arctic policy. She
stated AOGA' s nmission and thanked the Arctic Policy Conmm ssion
for their work on the inplementation plan and the follow
t hrough. She opined that the docunent reflects the opinions of
Al askans and is a neani ngful guide.

M5. BLAIR spoke to Recomendation 3E saying AOGA strongly
encourages education efforts that increase public awareness of
living natural resources and their inpact on the state. She
suggested including all natural resources such as tinber, coal
m nerals, oil, and gas.

She al so suggested that Recomrendati on 3G include strong support
by AOCGA when chal |l enging federal government ESA |istings used to
halt or delay developnent. She encouraged the legislature to
i nclude funding to continue litigation in ESA matters.

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES -21- Cct ober 2, 2015



CO-CHAIR MCAQU RE asked if AOGA had filed an am cus curiae brief
in the nbpst recent ESA cases.

M5. BLAIR said she would have to follow up on that question.

SENATOR COGHI LL suggested that the commttee take seriously M.
Blair's comment about including all natural resources.

CHAI R HERRON concurred. He shared an experience in King Cove.

4:04:55 PM

CO CHAIR G ESSEL thanked everyone and adjourned the joint
nmeeting of the Senate Special Commttee on the Arctic and the
House Special Conmmttee on Economc Developnent, Tourism &
Arctic Policy at 4:04 p.m

JT. SARC/ HEDA COWMM TTEES -22- Cct ober 2, 2015



